
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Meeting: Thursday 30th January, 2020
   at 2.00 pm. (Committee Room No. 4)

A G E N D A

PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

5.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  

6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 28th November, 2019.

3 - 8



FOR DECISION 

(D) 7.  Budget Timetable and Assumptions 
 

9 - 14

(D) 8.  Scrutiny Event at SLDC 
 

15 - 16

(D) 9.  Street Cleanliness and Revenues and Benefits (Working Groups) 
 

17 - 18

(D) 10.  Waste Working Group 
 

19 - 20

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

Membership of Committee

Councillors Cassidy (Vice-Chair)
Gawne
Husband
W. McClure
McEwan
McLeavy (Chairman)
Mooney
Morgan
Pidduck
Robson
C. Thomson
Worthington

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:

Sandra Kemsley
Democratic Services Officer
01229 876336
spkemsley@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Wednesday 22nd January, 2020



BOROUGH OF BARROW IN FURNESS

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Meeting: Thursday 28th November, 2019
at 2.00 p.m. (Committee Room No. 4)

PRESENT:- Councillors McLeavy (Chairman), Burley, Gawne, Husband, W. McClure, 
McEwan, Pidduck, S. Robson, C. Thomson and M. A. Thomson.

Officers Present:- Alan Barker (Streetcare Manager), Keith Johnson (Assistant 
Director - Corporate Services), John Penfold (Corporate Support Manager) and 
Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer) 

Also Present: Alec Proffitt (Co-opted Member).

26 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Cassidy, Mooney, Morgan 
and Worthington.

Councillors Burley and M. A. Thomson had attended as substitutes for Councillors 
Cassidy and Worthington respectively for this meeting only.

27 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 24th October, 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

28 – The Council Plan 2020

The Corporate Support Manager reported that the Council Plan had been presented to 
the Executive Committee on 27th November, 2019.  The Council Plan had been 
revised to take into account updates to the Council’s priorities to meet the future 
challenges and opportunities for the Borough.  The Council Plan 2020-2024 had been 
developed with input from both Members and Officers, to ensure the Council as a 
whole understands and strived to achieve the Council’s priority outcomes. 

The Council Plan was a key strategic document which sets the priorities for the 
Borough and would guide decision making, including how public money was spent 
during the period 2020-2024. It sat alongside the MTFS and also reflected the plans 
and strategies of other organisations that the Council would work with. 

The Council Plan sets the Council’s strategic direction for the next four years. It was 
underpinned by a performance management framework which would ensure that 
resources were targeted in the right areas to deliver priorities. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



The vision of the Council was for the Borough to be a great place to live, work and 
visit.

The vision would be achieved through three Council Plan priorities;

Enabling our residents to live happy, healthy, productive lives. 

Creating vibrant, safe and welcoming places where people want to live. 

Supporting our economy to thrive and benefit all our residents.

The Values and Behaviours together with the three priorities were also considered by 
the Committee.

The draft Plan was yet to be finalised in terms of format and final text updates; the 
priorities and objectives were not expected to change but the actions may be 
rephrased or updated.

The final copy of the Council Plan 2020-2024 would be circulated ahead of the Council 
meeting.  A designed version would go to Full Council for publication along with a 
‘Plan on a page’ with success measures aligned. 

Progress and achievement of the Council’s objectives would be monitored through the 
Performance Management Framework and reported to this Committee. 

RESOLVED: - 

1. To note the Council Plan for the period 2020-2024;

2. To agree to forward comments on the Council Plan to John Penfold prior to the 
next Council meeting in January; and

3. To agree to set up a Work Group to scrutinise the Council Plan at the next 
meeting of this Committee.

29 – Quarter 1-2 Performance Indicators

The Corporate Support Manager provided Members with an update regarding the 
service performance indicator outputs for Quarters 1-2. He advised that the 
Performance Indicator data had been considered by the Executive Committee on 27th 
November, 2019.

Where there had been significant variation in the outputs compared to Quarters 1-2 
the reasons for the variation was considered.

1. The number of food safety standard inspections was below target which was 
attributable to staffing levels which was being addressed by an on-going staff 
recruitment exercise. The Public Protection Team had focussed on inspecting the 
higher risk businesses during that period and 89% of these inspections had been 
completed. The Public Protection Manager also structured the inspections from 
high to low risk.

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



2. Forum attendance figures were above the target: The Forum’s programme 
continued to grow and develop, attracting some of the largest touring shows and 
comedians in the country. In addition, the forum now reported the Building users 
91,245 and the total income £129,000. That included additional information that 
was requested by this Committee at its meeting in September.

3. The ‘Operational/ Contractor’ performance indicators were marginally below the 
target set but had improved significantly since Quarter 1. That was attributable to 
improvements in data reporting and a targeted approach by the Streetcare Team 
and the waste contractor.

4. The first quarter reporting on the number of starters and leavers at Life Leisure; it 
would take the full reporting year to start seeing some frequency in the results.

RESOLVED:- To note the report.

30 – Street Cleanliness/Revenues and Benefits Working Groups

Street Cleanliness

The first meeting of the Street Cleanliness Working Group had been held on 11th 
November, 2019 and Councillor Robson provided a verbal update from that meeting.  
Members of the Group were: Councillors Husband, McLeavy and Robson and Alec 
Proffitt. The aim of the Group was what if any impact had there been on the quality of 
service following the known reduction in the value of the street cleansing contract. The 
Group had developed a first set of questions for the Assistant Director - Community 
Services. The Group hoped to have received a reply from Keith prior to their next 
meeting on 13th January, 2019.

Revenues and Benefits

The Group had met on 4th November, 2019 and Councillor Robson provided a verbal 
update from that meeting. Members of the Group were: himself, Councillors Husband, 
McLeavy and W. McClure. The aim of the Group was to understand the benefits and 
costs to bringing the service in-house rather than it being outsourced and also any 
impact on the people who were using the service. The Group had developed first set 
of questions for the Director of Resources; no reply had been received as yet. The 
next meeting of the Group was scheduled for 16th December, 2019.

RESOLVED:- To agree to continue receiving reports from the Street Cleanliness Work 
Group and Revenues and Benefits Work Group on a quarterly basis.

31 – Use of Customer Services Data

The Corporate Support Manager provided Members with an update regarding the use 
of Customer Services data.  He advised that at the meeting on 4th July, 2019 it had 
been agreed to review the Customer Services on a quarterly basis.

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



It had been noted that it was not currently possible for the data to be broken down into 
Wards, although a new system was being looked into and this request would form part 
of the specification.

The data from 1st April, 2019 to 31st October, 2019 had been presented as follows:-

Service Number reported Number taken to 
service failure 

Dog Fouling     66     7
Fly Tipping 1329     8
Missed Container   948 141
New Container 1952   29
Special Collection 5168   48
Allotment   239     0
Drug Related Litter       6     0
Abandoned Vehicles   107     1
Animal Carcass     31     0
Vandalism       3     0
TOTAL SERVICE 9849 233

Out of the 948 missed containers, 21% of those were not recorded on white space 
which increased the chance for the customer to take the service request to a service 
failure as white space was used for both the Council and Contractor to have a clear 
overview of the services offered. 

Councillor McEwan raised concerns regarding the number of fly tips. Alan Barker 
stated that often fly tip were bags of litter.  

RESOLVED:- To agree to continue receiving Customer Services Data performance 
reports on a quarterly basis.

32 – Waste Working Group

Alec Proffitt submitted a report to update the Committee on the SSWG activity:-

Recommendations delivered to Contract Partnership Board:

Recommendations were delivered to the reconvened Contract Partnership Board.  
The SWWG felt that the resolution of issues with the Materials Recovery Facility 
(MRF) remained the priority and these should be prioritised over changes to collection 
methodology and materials collected.

Visit to Materials Recovery Facility:

FCC and the Street Care Department had organised for Members of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to visit the Materials Recovery Facility (MRF) on Park Road.

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



Key observations from the visit were as follows:

 Sampling and compositional analysis of each recycling load tipped does help in 
ensuring consistency of assessing contamination levels, however, due to the 
likelihood of contaminants weighing more than the recyclate, a “base-level” of 
25% is too low and a new level should be agreed by the Partnership Board;

 A degree of “pre-sorting” (prior to the materials being placed on the belt for 
separation would result in more materials being recovered;

 The conveyor belt and pickers process led to a great deal of good quality 
recyclate being lost at the end of the process;

 All alternatives for recyclate treatment should be considered, including extra 
resource at the existing MRF through to a more technical option;

 The quality of treatment at the MRF seems to be the key factor in the service 
failing to deliver higher levels of recycling.

Recommendation tracking - RAG spreadsheet:

Much work had been initiated since the Contract Partnership Board was reconvened.  
In order to ensure recommendations were considered and all relevant work to improve 
service performance was done in a coherent, planned and integrated way, SWWG 
have produced the attached “Red, Amber and Green” (RAG) recommendations 
tracker.  Updates will be reported through Overview & Scrutiny Committee as part of 
the quarterly reports.

Meeting with Executive Director and Environment Spokesperson:

SWWG had invited the Executive Director and Environment Spokesperson to their 
next meeting on 19th November, 2019.  The discussions centred around the following 
agenda items:-

 Effective monitoring and assessment of the SWWG’s O&S recommendations 
and capturing work from elsewhere;

 Effective communication - including the different tiers of officer/contractor 
delivery and management as well as elected representatives within key 
committees;

 Effective  and risk assessed change management;
 Planning and delivering effective communication with residents.

Alec Proffit provided a verbal update from the above meeting on 19th November, 2019 
as follows:- 

1. Both the Council and Contractor have recognised that the existing MRF is not 
working and suggestions for improvement have been rejected by both sides as 
being insufficient to improve performance to the required levels.  Therefore, both 
Council and Contractor will be researching alternative treatment sites, bringing 
alternatives to the Contract Partnership Board for discussion;

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



2. In order to facilitate accurate and efficient communication and information 
sharing between the different levels of contract management, the Council will 
develop and agree terms of reference for each of the three groups that meet to 
discuss contract performance and management;

3. The Council will develop and implement a clear process for managing and 
delivering communications with service users on all aspects of the waste 
management contract, which reflects the decision-making delegation as outlined 
in the terms of reference detailed in (2) above.

Keith Johnson added that the Streetcare Team were working with the contractor and 
had introduced a number of initiatives to tackle the contamination issue and he will 
update this committee on a regular basis.

RESOLVED:- To note the information.

The meeting closed at 2.56 pm.

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



  Part One

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 30th January, 2020

Reporting Officer:  Director of Resources    

(D)

Title: Budget Timetable and Assumptions

Summary and Conclusions: 

This report sets out the 2020-2021 budget timetable key dates, the main 
assumptions that the budget estimates will be based on, and a summary of 
the budget proposals.

Recommendations: 

Members are asked to note the report and raise any questions.

Report

The timetable for the 2020-2021 budget setting process is as follows:

Date Meeting Item
27th November 2019 Executive Committee Budget assumptions

16th January 2020 Housing Management 
Forum

Housing Revenue Account 
budget

30th January 2020 Overview and Scrutiny Budget assumptions
5th February 2020 Executive Committee Budget proposals

27th February 2020 Full Council Budget and Council Tax setting

The assumptions used in setting budget estimates for 2020-2021 are set out 
below and those highlighted have been updated since their initial presentation 
to the Executive Committee:

Item Assumption
Continuing savings built into the budget 
projectionsBudget strategy
Budget projections revised
No service reductionsServices No demand-led increases assumed
No change in the establishment

Staff pay Employee natural increment progression 
and National Living Wage

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



Item Assumption
Superannuation rate 19.5%
Changed to 20.6%; updated from draft 
pension triennial valuation
Pay award assumed 2%
Spinal points and scales unchanged
Electricity 8%
Gas 8%
Water 5%Property costs
NNDR based on 2017 revaluation
NNDR multiplier

Grants to external bodies
Funded until 2020-2021
Funded until 2024-2025; agreed by Council 
in March 2019
Revenues and benefits IT and specialist 
services 3%
Grounds maintenance 2.4%
Waste and street cleansing 4.5%

Contracted services; set in each 
contract against specific indices

Building cleaning new contract
Discretionary income as per service 
delegations
No reduction in recycling tonnageIncome

3% increase in recycling reward rate
Temporary surplus cash reducing by £3m 
each year
Temporary surplus cash reducing by £2m 
each year; cash flow analysis
Investment income based on bank rate 
forecasts
All PWLB fixed rate, maturity reflected in 
budget estimates
No new borrowing drawn down

Treasury management

Financing based on agreed Capital 
Programme

Pension deficit funding (not 
ongoing superannuation) Triennial valuation at 1st April 2020

Revenue support grant From the settlement
Increased by SBRR multiplier each year
No loss of rateable value
No exceptional growth
No exceptional increase in RV appeals
No reduction in the collection rate
Tariff from the settlement
Section 31 grants continuing
Levy continuing (into Pool)

Retained business rates

Pool membership continues

New homes bonus
No further awards due to threshold
Small award for 2020-2021 and final legacy 
payment totalling £11k

Page 10

Agenda Item 7



Item Assumption
No reduction in the collection rate
Base to be estimated on most recent 
information

Council tax Band D increase the higher of 2.99% or £5; 
levels published with the settlement
Band D increase the higher of 1.99% or £5; 
levels published with the draft settlement

Council tax support Default scheme continued
Prior year collection fund result Return of any surplus or deficit

All other items not specifically 
mentioned above

Small increases to reflect market price 
changes
Efficiencies will maintain the cost envelope

Consultation Exercise

The proposals within the current Budget Strategy continue to be implemented 
and these were subject to public consultation during the summer of 2016, 
however, as the underlying assumptions can vary year on year, a budget 
consultation exercise is carried out; this also informs future planning.

There are no comments to report for consideration or for information, and no 
changes have been incorporated in the proposed budget from comments 
received.

Budget Proposals

The budget proposals will be presented to the Executive Committee on the 
5th February, 2020.  The proposed budget is balanced and is an improvement 
on the Medium Term Financial Plan deficit projection for 2020-2021 of £0.3m.

The budget is proposed as £10.1m (including parish precepts) with a Council 
Tax increase of £5 per year on Band D properties; applied proportionately to 
other Bands. 89% of properties are below Band D and 59% of those are in 
Band A which will increase by £3.33 per year, 6 pence per week.

There is significant volatility around business rate retention and the budget 
relies on some business rates growth being retained for 2020-2021 and 
beyond into the medium and long term.  There is also volatility in the pension 
fund and the triennial valuation that results in a prudent addition to reserves to 
protect against future resumption of fund contribution rates.

The Capital Programme for 2020-2023 is £20m with no impact on the revenue 
budget; the funding comes from grants, usable capital receipts and the Major 
Repairs Reserve.

The current Budget Strategy is projected to achieve £2.7m by March 2020 
and £2.8m by March 2022.  The total savings and reductions from 2011 to 
2020 is £8.9m by March 2020, so £9m by March 2022.

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



The Medium Term Financial Plan projects relatively small deficits each year 
beyond 2020-2021.  The forward projection of reserves identifies the volatility 
held by reserves and recognises that the projected deficits should be funded 
from those sources (business rates and potentially the reduction in pension 
contributions).  There may be opportunities to eliminate or reduce the deficits 
during 2020-2021.

As the Budget Strategy is drawing to a close, the financial reserves have been 
reviewed and the Medium Term Financial Plan support reserve ended; the 
resources have been repurposed and transferred to create a Major Projects 
entry within the Transformation Reserve.

(i) Legal Implications

It is a statutory requirement to set the Council’s budgets and the council tax.

Members should be aware of the provisions of Section 106 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, which applies to Members where they are 
present at a meeting of the Council or the Executive Committee and at the 
time of the meeting an amount of council tax is payable by them and has 
remained unpaid for at least two months, and any budget or council tax 
calculation, or recommendation or decision which might affect the making of 
any such calculation, is the subject of consideration at the meeting.

In these circumstances, any such Members shall at the meeting and as soon 
practicable after its commencement disclose the fact that Section 106 applies 
to them and shall not vote on any question concerning these matters.  It 
should be noted that such Members are not debarred from speaking on these 
matters.

Failure to comply with these requirements constitutes a criminal offence, 
unless any such Members can prove they did not know that Section 106 
applied to them at the time of the meeting or that the matter in question was 
the subject of consideration at the meeting.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The Council’s financial resilience and delivery of the Budget Strategy are 
recognised in the Corporate Risk Register.  The Council’s budgets, Medium 
Term Financial Plan and Reserves and Balances, recognise risk and the 
impacts are taken into account and mitigated where possible and built into 
assumptions and estimates.

The final financial settlement is expected to be published late February; if 
there are significant changes, a report will be submitted to the budget setting 
Full Council meeting.

Page 12

Agenda Item 7



The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria is required to set their 
budget for 2020-2021 by the 28th February each year and there is a risk that 
their precept figure is not confirmed in time for the Full Council meeting; 
progress will be closely monitored between the Section 151 Officers.

(iii) Financial Implications

The financial implications are set out in the report.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no significant implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Report Author

Director of Resources

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



  Part One

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 30th January, 2020

Reporting Officer:    Corporate Support Manager

(D)

Title: Scrutiny Event at SLDC

Summary and Conclusions:

North West Employers are offering places on a scrutiny event in Kendal on 11th 
February.

Recommendations:

Members are invited to attend the event and should contact the Corporate 
Support Assistant if they would like to attend.

Report

North West Employers are offering places on a scrutiny event at Kendal 
Town Hall on 11th February if you are interested in attending please 
contact the Corporate Support Assistant.

Agenda:

Welcome and introductions from the Chair – Cllr Emma Ellison

Open forum – feedback and discussions on the themes of the recent 
CfPS Conference

Terms of Reference sign-off

Engaging the public in scrutiny

 In what ways are you currently engaging with the public around the 
scrutiny function and outputs?

 How do you engage public views for scrutiny themes using social 
media?

 Examples of what works well

Question time – your opportunity to bring any questions for the group

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Report Author

Alec Proffitt 

Page 16

Agenda Item 8



  Part One

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 30th January, 2020

Reporting Officer: Corporate Support Manager  

(D)

Title: Street Cleanliness and Revenues and Benefits (Working 
Groups)

Summary and Conclusions: 

Provide Members with an update regarding the Street Cleanliness and Revenues 
and Benefits Working Groups. 

Recommendations: 

Members are invited to agree to continue receiving reports for these work groups 
on a quarterly basis. 

Report

Councillor Robson will provide an update from these working groups.

Street Cleanliness

Members include:- Councillors Robson (Chair), Husband, McLeavy. Officers: John 
Penfold and Brooke Parsons, co-opted member Alec Proffitt.

The group has met twice, last meeting 13/1/20.

Initial questions sent to the Senior Officer with responsibility for street cleaning, Keith 
Johnson. Response received and reviewed by the group. A set of follow-on questions 
and invitation to attend the next meeting have now gone to Keith Johnson.

We are looking at the contract change process and some of the detail in the existing 
contract, and how that is presented/accessible to members/the wider public. Initially 
we are aware that some of the issues we have been exploring are covered by work 
done on the LGA Governance Review and this will be reflected in our final report.

We anticipate completion of this working group following a further one or two 
meetings. Next meeting scheduled for Monday 10th February, 2020.

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



Revenues and Benefits

Members include:- Councillors Robson (Chair), Husband, McLeavy and McClure. 
Officers John Penfold and Brooke Parsons.

First meeting has taken place, initial questions sent to Senior Officer, Sue Roberts. 
A written reply has been received and is ready for review at the next meeting, 
(occurred on 20th January, 2020).

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any of the 
protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of users of 
this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Reporting Author

Corporate Support Assistant 

Page 18

Agenda Item 9



  Part One

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 30th January, 2020

Reporting Officer:    Corporate Support Manager 

(D)

Title: Waste Working Group

Summary and Conclusions:

This report provides an update on the activities of the Scrutiny Waste Working 
Group.

Recommendations:

Members are invited to consider and note the information provided in this 
report.

Report

The Scrutiny Waste Working Group (SWWG) is a sub-group of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and meets on a monthly basis.  SWWG is investigating 
ways of improving the performance of the recycling collection services and 
reports to the main Committee on a quarterly basis.

Recommendations to Contract Partnership Board:

The Waste Working Group met after the last Contract Partnership Board 
meeting to receive an update on the outcome of the meeting, which was held 
on 10th December 2019.

The primary issue of concern for the group was the suitability and performance 
of the Materials Recovery Facility that is being used to treat the resource that 
is collected through the red bin recycling service.  The Waste Working Group 
are satisfied that the issue is being dealt with via the Partnership Board and will 
suspend meeting until options for alternate treatment are suggested, assessed 
and implemented.

Issues surrounding the remit of each level of contract management and the 
communication between different groups looking at contract performance are 
also being addressed.

The Waste Working Group will reconvene should progress on the above two 
issues stall.

Page 19

Agenda Item 10



(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Report Author

Alec Proffitt 

Page 20

Agenda Item 10


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Budget Timetable and Assumptions
	8 Scrutiny Event at SLDC
	9 Street Cleanliness and Revenues and Benefits (Working Groups)
	10 Waste Working Group

